
 
 
 
If you would like help to understand this document please call Lois Stock, Democratic Services Officer 
on or email lstock@oxford.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 

 

 
Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 

Planning Review Committee 
 
 
 

Date: Wednesday 25 July 2012 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Place: The Old Library, Town Hall 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Lois Stock, Democratic Services Officer 

Telephone: 01865 252275 

Email: lstock@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 
 



 

HOW TO OBTAIN AGENDA 

 

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no longer produce 
paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum internal and Council member requirement. 
Paper copies may be looked at the Town Hall Reception and at Customer Services, St Aldate’s and 
at the Westgate Library 

 

A copy of the agenda may be:- 

- Viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Downloaded from our website 

- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription. 

 

 

 
 

Planning Review Committee 
 

Membership 
 
 
Chair Councillor Antonia Bance Rose Hill and Iffley; 

 
Vice-Chair Councillor Jean Fooks Summertown; 

 
 Councillor Alan Armitage North; 

 Councillor Laurence Baxter Quarry and Risinghurst; 

 Councillor Mark Lygo Churchill; 

 Councillor Joe McManners Churchill; 

 Councillor Mike Rowley Barton and Sandhills; 

 Councillor Ed Turner Rose Hill and Iffley; 

 Councillor Dick Wolff St. Mary's; 

 
 



 
  
 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
  Pages 

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

3 PLANNING APPLICATION - 11/02446/FUL - CANTAY HOUSE, 36-
39 PARK END STREET 
 

1 - 26 

 Proposal: Demolition of rearmost building. Erection of a 5 storey building 
consisting of 9 x 2 bed flats with cycle parking, bin stores and landscaping. 
 
This application was considered by West Area Planning Committee on 8th 
December 2011. It was subsequently called in to the Planning Review 
Committee. 
 
Report of the Head of City Development attached. 

 
 

 

4 MINUTES 
 

27 - 30 

 Minutes of the meeting held on 26th June 2012 attached. 

 
 

5 DATE OF MEETINGS 
 

 

 The following dates are scheduled for meetings of this Committee:- 
 
Wednesday 25th July 
Wednesday 29th August 
Tuesday 25th September (please note change of day) 
Wednesday 31st October 
Wednesday 28th November 
Wednesday 19th December 
Wednesday 30th January 2013 
Wednesday 27th February 
Wednesday 27th march 
Wednesday 24th April 
Wednesday 29th May 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

DECLARING INTERESTS 
 
General duty 
 
You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item 
on the agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. 
 
What is a disclosable pecuniary interest? 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your 
election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the Council’s 
area; corporate tenancies; and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each 
councillor’s Register of Interests which is publicly available on the Council’s website. 
 
Declaring an interest 
 
Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, 
you must declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as 
the existence of the interest. 
 
If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you 
must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting 
whilst the matter is discussed. 
 
Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception 
 
Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of 
Conduct says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never 
improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that 
“you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 
questioned”.  What this means is that the matter of interests must be viewed within the 
context of the Code as a whole and regard should continue to be paid to the perception of 
the public. 
 
*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself but 
also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or as if they were 
civil partners.. 



 

 

 
CODE OF PRACTICE FOR DEALING WITH PLANNING APPLICATIONS AT AREA PLANNING 

COMMITTEES AND PLANNING REVIEW COMMITTEE  
 
Planning controls the development and use of land in the public interest.  Applications must be determined in 
accordance with the Council’s adopted policies, unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise.  
The Committee must be conducted in an orderly, fair and impartial manner.  
 
The following minimum standards of practice will be followed.  A full Planning Code of Practice is contained in 
the Council’s Constitution.  
 
1. All Members will have pre-read the officers’ report.  Members are also encouraged to view any supporting 
material and to visit the site if they feel that would be helpful 

  
2. At the meeting the Chair will draw attention to this code of practice.  The Chair will also explain who is 
entitled to vote. 

 
3. The sequence for each application discussed at Committee shall be as follows:-  
 

(a)  the Planning Officer will introduce it with a short presentation;  
 

(b)  any objectors may speak for up to 5 minutes in total;  
 

(c)  any supporters may speak for up to 5 minutes in total; 
  

(Speaking times may be extended by the Chair, provided that equal time is given to both sides.  Any 
non-voting City Councillors and/or Parish and County Councillors who may wish to speak for or 
against the application will have to do so as part of the two 5-minute slots mentioned above; 

 
(d)  voting members of the Committee may raise questions (which shall be directed via the Chair to 

the  lead officer presenting the application, who may pass them to other relevant Officer/s and/or 
other speaker/s); and  

 
(e)  voting members will debate and determine the application.  

 
4. Members of the public wishing to speak must send an e-mail to planningcommittee@oxford.gov.uk 
before 10.00 am on the day of the meeting giving details of your name, the application/agenda item you 
wish to speak on and whether you are objecting to or supporting the application (or complete a ‘Planning 
Speakers’ form obtainable at the meeting and hand it to the Democratic Services Officer or the Chair at the 
beginning of the meeting)   

 
5. All representations should be heard in silence and without interruption. The Chair will not permit disruptive 
behaviour.  Members of the public are reminded that if the meeting is not allowed to proceed in an orderly 
manner then the Chair will withdraw the opportunity to address the Committee.  The Committee is a meeting 
held in public, not a public meeting, 

 
6. Members should not:-  
 

(a)   rely on considerations which are not material planning considerations in law; 
 

(b)   question the personal integrity or professionalism of officers in public;  
 

(c)  proceed to a vote if minded to determine an application against officer’s recommendation until 
the reasons for that decision have been formulated; and  

 
(d)  seek to re-design, or negotiate amendments to, an application.  The Committee must determine 

applications as they stand and may impose appropriate conditions. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT 

 

 

Planning Review Committee 

 

25
th
 July 2012 

 
 

Application Number: 11/02446/FUL 

  

Decision Due by: 21st November 2011 

  

Proposal: Demolition of rearmost building.  Erection of 5 storey 
building consisting of 9 x 2-bed flats with cycle parking, bin 
stores and landscaping. 

  

Site Address: Cantay House 36 - 39 Park End Street. 

  

Ward: Carfax Ward 

 

Agent:  John Philips Planning 
Consultancy 

Applicant:  Cantay Investments Ltd 

 

Recommendation 
 
That planning permission be refused for the following reason: 
 
1. The proposed scheme for the erection of 9 x 2 bedroom residential flats on a site 

with capacity for 10 units is inappropriate as it does not include a contribution 
towards the provision of affordable housing in Oxford, which is contrary to policy 
CS24 of the adopted Oxford Core Strategy the Affordable Housing SPD, and 
policies HP3 and HP4 of the Sites and Housing Plan, and would cause harm by 
failing to contribute to the provision of mixed and balanced communities across 
Oxford as required by those policies 

 
 

Background 
 

1. This application was considered at the meeting of West Planning Area 
Committee on 8

th
 December 2011 when Members resolved on a vote of 6 – 2  

to approve the application subject to the conditions set out in the attached 
report. 

 
2. A 12 member motion to call in the application to Planning Review Committee 

was received on 9
th
 December 2011 on grounds that the proposal is for a 

development of 9 x 2 bedroom flats which is one unit short of triggering an 
affordable housing requirement; that the site is capable of providing 10 flats 
and that the developers have under developed the site in order to avoid 
making a contribution to affordable housing contrary to policy CS24 of the 
adopted Oxford Core Strategy and the Affordable Housing SPD. 

 
3. Clearly if the site can accommodate 9 x 2 bed flats, if some of the flats 

were 1 bed rather than 2, then the 10 site threshold would be met. 

Agenda Item 3

1



REPORT 

 
4. On 19

th
 December 2011 the full Council endorsed the proposed 

submission Sites and Housing Plan for publication and submission to the 
Secretary of State for examination.  Council also adopted the Sites and 
Housing Plan for development control purposes, considering the advanced 
stage it is in production, the front loading of the evidence base and the 
responses from the earlier consultation stages.  The Sites and Housing 
Plan was formally submitted to the SoS for examination in May 2012. 

 
5. At its meeting on 22

nd
 December 2012, Planning Review Committee 

considered the proposal, and considered that while the site technically 
could accommodate 10 units, and trigger the requirement for generally a 
minimum of 50% of the development to be affordable housing under policy 
CP24 of the Core Strategy and the Affordable Housing SPD; that it was 
better to seek an off-site financial contribution to affordable housing in 
accordance with policy HP4 of the Sites and Housing Plan.  The Planning 
Review Committee voted to defer the application in order to allow 
negotiation between the applicant and the City Council officers in relation 
to an off site affordable housing contribution. 

 
6. The affordable housing policy requirement in the Sites and Housing Plan 

for residential schemes of between 4 - 9 dwellings is for a financial 
contribution to off site affordable housing.  The contribution is equivalent to 
15% of the sales value of the units (otherwise known as the gross 
development value). In addition a 5% (of the contribution) administrative 
charge is required to cover the administrative costs of being able to spend 
and implement the affordable housing contribution.  The policy requires 
the contribution to be paid prior to the sale (or occupation) of more than 
50% of the site.  This has the advantage of improving the cash flow for the 
developer, and removes any uncertainty about the sales value of the units. 

 
7. The applicant has submitted 2 parallel applications for this site, one for 

student accommodation, and this one for residential development.  The 
City Council granted permission for the student accommodation scheme 
on 9 February 2012, which included a legal agreement to pay £172,845 
contribution to off site affordable housing in accordance with Policy HP6 
the Sites and Housing Plan.  Also included is a West End Infrastructure 
contribution of £49,984 and admin fees of £500 for the Infrastructure 
contribution and £1,000 for the affordable Housing contribution. 

 
8. The applicant has sought to suggest that the residential scheme is not 

sufficiently viable to make any affordable housing contribution.  The Sites 
and Housing Plan policy does make it clear that if there are specific issues 
which would make a scheme unviable, then the planning authority will take 
this into account when applying the policy.  This reflects the normal 
approach of considering whether there are any material considerations 
which would justify a departure from the development plan policy. 

 

Summary of the Policy Position 
 

2



REPORT 

9. The adopted Core Strategy along with saved Oxford Local Plan policy 
HS4 and the Affordable Housing SPD would require that any site in 
excess of 0.25ha or with the capacity for 10 units to make an on site 
affordable housing provision of generally a minimum of 50% of the units.  
Policy HP3 of the Sites and Housing Plan will replace Local Plan Policy 
HS.4, but carries forward the threshold of 10 units as a trigger for on-site 
affordable housing.  In calling the application to Planning Review 
Committee, Members were of the view that the site had the capacity to 
accommodate 10 or more units, and therefore the policy requirement has 
been triggered. 

 
10. Policy HP4 of the new Sites and Housing Plan requires sites of 4-9 

dwellings to make a contribution to affordable housing, however it seeks a 
financial contribution to off site affordable housing.  This proposal clearly 
triggers this policy. 

 
11. Under either Policy HP3 or HP4 the proposal triggers the need to make an 

affordable housing contribution.  Officers have sought to negotiate the 
financial contribution in relation to the Sites and Housing Plan policy, ie 
that 15% of the GDV should be an affordable housing contribution towards 
the provision of affordable housing off site. 

 
12. The applicant has now declined to make any affordable housing 

contribution, based upon their case on viability.  Further details on this are 
set out below. 

 

Viability methodology 
 

13. The methodology to assess viability is relatively straight forward, and is 
based upon the Residual Land Value.  One considers the gross 
development value (GDV) of the scheme, in this case the total value 
expected of the sales of the residential units.  One subtracts the costs of 
the scheme (which includes the cost of construction, the finance costs, 
developers profit and other planning policy requirements).  The difference 
between the cost of the development and the GDV is how much the land 
is worth (this difference is known as the ‘residual land value’ or RLV).  If 
the residual land value is greater than the existing use value (plus a 
reasonable incentive for the landowner to bring the site to the market), 
then the scheme is viable. 

 
14. The difficulty comes when trying to assess the assumptions and values 

which are fed into the model, as this is where significant differences in 
results can occur.  Therefore in assessing viability information, it is 
important that all of the figures are clearly evidenced. 

 
15. It is also important for the planning authority to distinguish between 

viability and value.  In this case, where there are two different proposals 
on the same site, and both uses are acceptable in principle, the question 
is whether the proposal creates a residual land value greater than the 
existing use value, not whether the scheme creates a land value higher 

3



REPORT 

that an alternative land value – ie the student scheme.  From a 
landowners perspective, all other things being equal, the landowner would 
implement the scheme which is has the highest value.  But for the 
planning authority, unless there can be harm demonstrated by the 
implementation of the alternative scheme, this is not the appropriate 
consideration.  In effect, if every time the consideration was an alternative 
land value, one could clearly see the situation where value spiralled. 

 
16. It should also be noted that permitting this scheme without provision 

towards affordable housing would, if that meant that this scheme would 
proceed and the student accommodation scheme did not, result in the loss 
of the provision towards affordable housing that the student 
accommodation scheme would provide. 

 

Viability details 
 

17. The applicant has provided different viability assessments over the last 6 
months.  The applicant’s own sales figures expect to generate a gross 
development value of £3,755,000.  15% of this sum is £546,354. and 5% 
administrative fee is an extra £27,318.  This would create a policy 
compliant affordable housing contribution of £573,670 

 
18. The applicant’s first viability assessment indicated that using their own 

figures, an affordable housing contribution of £106,000 was viable; 
however the contribution offered was capped at £100,000. The City 
Council commissioned external surveyors to take a strategic review of the 
applicant’s assessment.  The advice from the City Council’s advisors was 
that the viability study was unclear, and it was possible that items had 
been double counted.  In addition there were 9 separate areas where 
further evidence was required. 

 
19. In response, the applicant submitted a further viability assessment.  This 

assessment did provide further information on a number of points.  But at 
this stage the residual land value was compared to an alternative use 
value of student accommodation. 

 
20. This approach is flawed for 2 reasons.  Firstly, as set out above, the 

question the planning authority needs to consider is whether the scheme 
is viable against the existing use value (plus a landowner’s sales margin) 
not an alternative use value.  Secondly, the residual land value of the site 
for student accommodation has not been established clearly using the 
same methodology, ie a full Residual Land Value assessment.  Hence 
they were not comparing like with like. 

 
21. The applicant has taken this approach as the existing building on site has 

now been demolished, however that does not change the approach to 
viability assessment for planning purposes. 

 
22. As a result of the second viability assessment, the applicant has 

withdrawn the original offer of an affordable housing contribution, and has 

4



REPORT 

asked that the application be determined on the basis that an affordable 
housing contribution is not reasonable in this case. 

 
 

Conclusions 
 

23. The proposal is for 9 x 2bed flats.  As such the site is considered to have 
the capacity for 10 units.  This would trigger the need for on site affordable 
housing under the adopted Oxford Core Strategy and Affordable Housing 
SPD.  Under the new Sites and Housing Plan, a scheme of 4 to 9 units is 
required to make a financial contribution towards the provision of 
affordable housing off site.  While the proposed development triggers both 
policies, Officers have sought to negotiate an affordable housing 
contribution in line with policy HP4 of the Sites and Housing Plan.  This 
approach is considered reasonable and supported by a recent appeal 
decision (Hernes House). 

 
24. The applicant has sought to use viability issues to argue against the 

payment of any affordable housing contribution, and has withdrawn an 
earlier offer of a financial contribution towards affordable housing.  It is 
considered that evidence submitted is not clear or robust, and officers are 
not satisfied that a departure from the policy position is justified, therefore 
the proposal is unacceptable and would cause harm by failing to provide 
for mixed and balanced communities..  It is therefore recommended that 
the application should be refused. 

 
 

Background Papers: 

 
11/02181/FUL 
11/02446/FUL 
Hernes House appeal 
 

Contact Officer: Angela Fettiplace and Mark Jaggard 

Extension: 2445 / 2161 

Date: 12
th
 July 2012 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26

This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING REVIEW COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday 26 June 2012 
 
COUNCILLORS PRESENT: Councillors Bance (Chair), Fooks (Vice-Chair), 
Baxter, Lygo, McManners, Rowley, Wolff, Coulter and Gotch. 
 
 
OFFICERS PRESENT: Mathew Metcalfe (Democratic and Electoral  Services), 
Michael Morgan (Law and Governance) and Nick Worlledge (City Development) 
 
 
1. ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR COUNCIL YEAR 2012/2013 
 
The Committee agreed to elect Councillor Antonia Bance as Chair for the 
Council Year 2012/13. 
 
 
2. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR FOR COUNCIL YEAR 2012/2013 
 
The Committee agreed to elect Councillor Jean Fooks as Vice-Chair for the 
Council Year 2012/13. 
 
 
3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Alan Armitage (Councillor 
Mike Gotch attended as a substitute) and Ed Turner (Councillor Van Coulter 
attended as a substitute). 
 
 
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
No declarations of interest were declared. 
 
 
5. PLANNING APPLICATIONS 12/00495/FUL AND 12/00460/LBC  - 

MAGDALEN COLLEGE 
 
The Head of City Development submitted a report (previously circulated, now 
appended) which detailed two applications as follows: 
 
(1) Extension to existing library to provide book storage, reading rooms, staff 

accommodation, seminar rooms, landscaping to quadrangle and provision 
of level access and bicycle storage facilities; 

 
(2) External and internal alterations and extension to library involving the 

removal of inserted floor and staircase, insertion of new staircase, lift to 
provide book storage, reading rooms, staff accommodation and seminar 
space. 

 
The application was considered by the West Area Planning Committee at its 
meeting on 30th May 2012, where it agreed not to grant planning permission for 
the following reasons: 

Agenda Item 4

27



 

 
(1) To refuse planning consent for application 12/00459/FUL for the following 

reasons:- 
 

(a) The proposal would form an inappropriate visual relationship with 
the existing Grade II* listed New Library building and the 
surrounding development that lies within the Central City and 
University Conservation Area. The proposals are therefore 
considered to be contrary to polices HE3, HE7 of the Oxford Local 
Plan 2001-2016, and policy CS18 of the Oxford Core Strategy 
2026.  

 
(b) The construction of the plinth/terrace would cause unacceptable 

harm by its visual impact on the setting and special architectural 
and historical interest of the Grade II* listed New Library building 
that is not outweighed by the public benefit of development. The 
proposals are therefore considered to be contrary to polices HE3, 
HE7 of the Oxford Local Plan 2001-2016, and policy CS18 of the 
Oxford Core Strategy 2026.  

 
(2) To refuse planning consent for application 12/00460/LBC for the following 

reasons:- 
 

(a) The proposal would form an inappropriate visual relationship with 
the existing Grade II* listed New Library building and the 
surrounding development that lies within the Central City and 
University Conservation Area. The proposals for listed building 
consent are therefore contrary to the advice in the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 
(b) The construction of the plinth/terrace would cause unacceptable 

harm by its visual impact on the setting and special architectural 
and historical interest of the Grade II* listed New Library building 
that is not outweighed by the public benefit of development.. The 
proposals for listed building consent are therefore contrary to the 
advice in the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 
Following the West Area Planning Committee meeting, the applications were 
subsequently called-in by Councillor Mary Clarkson, Colin Cook, Van Coulter, 
James Fry, Patricia Kennedy, Shah Jahan Kahn, Joe McManners, Susanna 
Pressel, Bob Price, Mike Rowley, Gill Sanders, Scott Seamons, John Tanner 
and Ed Turner as they felt that the reasons for refusal were not strong with a risk 
of losing on appeal. 
 
In accordance with the criteria for public speaking, Charles Young, Claire Wright 
and Julian Mumby spoke in favour of the applications.  No requests to speak 
against the applications were received. 
 
The Committee considered all submissions, bother written and oral and agreed: 
 
(a) With regard to application 12/00459/FUL, to grant planning permission 

subject to the 13 conditions as laid out in the Planning Officers report 
submitted to the West Area Planning Committee on 30th May 2012.; 

 

28



 

(b) With regard to application 12/00460/LBC to grant Listed Building Consent, 
subject to the 13 conditions as laid out in the Planning Officers report 
submitted to the West Area Planning Committee on 30th May 2012. 

 
 
6. MINUTES 
 
The Committee agreed to approve the minutes (previously circulated, now 
appended) of the meetings held on 15th and 22nd December 2011. 
 
 
7. DATES OF MEETINGS 
 
The Committee agreed to note that it would meet (subject to their being business 
to transact) at 6.00pm in the Town Hall on the following dates: 
 
Wednesday 25th August 2012 
Wednesday 29th August 2012 
Tuesday 25th September 2012 
Wednesday 31st October 2012 
Wednesday 28th November 2012 
Wednesday 19th December 2012 
Wednesday 30th January 2013 
Wednesday 27th February 2013 
Wednesday 27th March 2013 
Wednesday 24th April 2013 
 
 
 
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 7.20 pm 

29



30

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Planning Application - 11/02446/FUL - Cantay House, 36-39 Park End Street
	1583_001
	1581_001

	4 Minutes

